

duty of the department to stamp each application received pursuant to this section with the date and time of receipt.

This section shall not apply to offenses defined and punishable under the provisions of RCW 69.50.401 as now or hereafter amended.

Sec. 2. Section 2, chapter 123, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 72.49.020 are each amended to read as follows:

There ~~((shall))~~ may be established at an institution, or portion thereof, to be designated by the ~~((director))~~ secretary of the department of ~~((institutions))~~ social and health services, programs for treatment and rehabilitation of persons in need of medical care and treatment due to narcotic abuse or dangerous drug abuse. Such programs ~~((shall))~~ may include facilities for both residential and outpatient treatment. The ~~((director))~~ secretary of the department of ~~((institutions))~~ social and health services shall promulgate rules and regulations~~(s)~~ governing the voluntary admission, ~~((the))~~ treatment, and release of such patients, and all other matters incident to the proper administration of this section.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 3. The following acts or parts of acts are each repealed:

- (1) Section 69.32.070, chapter 27, Laws of 1959 and RCW 69.32.070;
 - (2) Section 69.32.080, chapter 27, Laws of 1959 and RCW 69.32.080;
 - (3) Section 69.32.090, chapter 27, Laws of 1959 and RCW 69.32.090;
 - (4) Section 69.32.100, chapter 27, Laws of 1959 and RCW 69.32.100;
 - (5) Section 69.32.110, chapter 27, Laws of 1959 and RCW 69.32.110;
 - (6) Section 69.32.120, chapter 27, Laws of 1959 and RCW 69.32.120;
 - (7) Section 69.32.130, chapter 27, Laws of 1959 and RCW 69.32.130;
 - (8) Section 72.48.010, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 and RCW 72.48.010;
 - (9) Section 72.48.020, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 and RCW 72.48.020;
 - (10) Section 72.48.030, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 and RCW 72.48.030;
 - (11) Section 72.48.040, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 and RCW 72.48.040;
 - (12) Section 72.48.050, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 and RCW 72.48.050;
 - (13) Section 72.48.060, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 and RCW 72.48.060;
 - (14) Section 72.48.070, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 and RCW 72.48.070;
 - (15) Section 72.48.080, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 and RCW 72.48.080;
 - (16) Section 72.48.090, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 and RCW 72.48.090;
 - (17) Section 72.48.100, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 and RCW 72.48.100;
- and
- (18) Section 72.48.110, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 and RCW 72.48.110.

Passed the Senate March 5, 1976.

Passed the House March 11, 1976.

Approved by the Governor March 18, 1976.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State March 18, 1976.

CHAPTER 104

[Engrossed Senate Bill No. 3261]

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE—(REFERENDUM BILL NO. 36)

AN ACT Relating to state government; amending section 24, chapter 1, Laws of 1973 as amended by section 13, chapter 294, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 42.17.240; and providing for a referendum to the people.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

Section 1. Section 24, chapter 1, Laws of 1973 as amended by section 13, chapter 294, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 42.17.240 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) Every elected official (except president, vice president and precinct committeemen), every chief executive state officer as specified in RCW 43.17.020, as now or hereafter amended, the director of the office of program planning and fiscal management, the director of the department of personnel, and every member appointed to the state board for community college education, office of community development, data processing authority, state finance committee, department of fisheries, forest practices board, forest practices appeals board, gambling commission, game commission, department of game, each professional staff member of the office of the governor, and each professional staff member of the legislature, higher education personnel board, state highway commission, horse racing commission, human rights commission, board of industrial insurance appeals, liquor control board, interagency commission for outdoor recreation, parks and recreation commission, personnel board, board of prison terms and paroles, public disclosure commission, public employees' retirement system, public pension commission, University of Washington board of regents, Washington State University board of regents, board of tax appeals, teachers' retirement system, Central Washington State College board of trustees, Eastern Washington State College board of trustees, Evergreen State College board of trustees, Western Washington State College board of trustees, board of trustees of each community college, and the utilities and transportation commission, and each chief executive officer of the various state boards, authorities, commissions, councils, and other political agencies enumerated in this section in addition to those specified in RCW 43.17.020 shall after January 1st and before January 31st of each year; and every candidate, and every person appointed to fill a vacancy in an elective office (except for the offices of president, vice president, and precinct committeeman) shall, within two weeks of becoming a candidate, and every person appointed to the appointive positions enumerated herein shall, within two weeks of being so appointed, or being appointed to such elective office, file with the commission a written statement sworn as to its truth and accuracy stating for himself and all members of his immediate family, for the preceding twelve months: PROVIDED, That no individual shall be required to file more than once in any calendar year:

(a) Occupation, name of employer, and business address; and

(b) Each bank or savings account or insurance policy in which any such person or persons owned a direct financial interest which exceeded five thousand dollars at any time during such period; each other item of intangible personal property in which any such person or persons owned a direct financial interest, the value of which exceeded five hundred dollars during such period; and the name, address, nature of entity, nature and highest value of each such direct financial interest during the reporting period; and

(c) The name and address of each creditor to whom the value of five hundred dollars or more was owed; the original amount of each debt to each such creditor; the amount of each debt owed to each creditor as of the date of filing; the terms of repayment of each such debt; and the security given, if any, for each such debt:

PROVIDED, That debts arising out of a "retail installment transaction" as defined in chapter 63.14 RCW (Retail Installment Sales Act) need not be reported; and

(d) Every public or private office, directorship and position as trustee held; and

(e) All persons for whom any legislation, or any rule, rate, or standard has been prepared, promoted, or opposed for current or deferred compensation: PROVIDED, That for the purposes of this subsection, "compensation" shall not include payments made to an elected official by the governmental entity for which such person serves as an elected official for his service in office; the description of such actual or proposed legislation, rules, rates, or standards; and the amount of current or deferred compensation paid or promised to be paid; and

(f) The name and address of each governmental entity, corporation, partnership, joint venture, sole proprietorship, association, union, or other business or commercial entity from whom compensation has been received in any form of a total value of five hundred dollars or more; the value of such compensation; and the consideration given or performed in exchange for such compensation; and

(g) The name of any corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, union, or other entity in which is held any office, directorship, or any general partnership interest, or an ownership interest of ten percent or more; the name or title of that office, directorship, or partnership; the nature of ownership interest; and with respect to each such entity: (i) With respect to a governmental unit in which the elected official holds any elective office, if such entity has received compensation in any form during the preceding twelve months from such governmental unit, the value of such compensation and the consideration given or performed in exchange for such compensation; (ii) The name of each governmental unit, corporation, partnership, joint venture, sole proprietorship, association, union, or other business or commercial entity from which such entity has received compensation in any form in the amount of two thousand five hundred dollars or more during the preceding twelve months and the consideration given or performed in exchange for such compensation: PROVIDED, That the term "compensation" for purposes of this subsection (1)(g)(ii) shall not include payment for water and other utility services at rates approved by the Washington state utilities and transportation commission or the legislative authority of the public entity providing such service; ~~((iii) The name, address, and occupation of every other director and/or officer of any bank or commercial lending institution, the name of which is required to be reported under this subsection or all interest paid by a borrower on loans from and all interest paid to a depositor by such bank or commercial lending institution if such interest exceeds six hundred dollars))~~: PROVIDED, FURTHER, That with respect to any bank or commercial lending institution in which is held any such office, directorship, partnership interest, or ownership interest, it shall only be necessary to report either the name, address, and occupation of every director and officer of such bank or commercial lending institution and the average monthly balance of each account held during the preceding twelve months by such bank or commercial lending institution from the governmental entity for which the individual is an elected official or candidate, or all interest paid by a borrower on loans from and all interest paid to a depositor by such

bank or commercial lending institution if such interest exceeds six hundred dollars; and

(h) A list, including legal or other sufficient descriptions as prescribed by the commission, of all real property in the state of Washington, the assessed valuation of which exceeds two thousand five hundred dollars in which any direct financial interest was acquired during the preceding calendar year, and a statement of the amount and nature of the financial interest and of the consideration given in exchange for such interest; and

(i) A list, including legal or other sufficient descriptions as prescribed by the commission, of all real property in the state of Washington, the assessed valuation of which exceeds two thousand five hundred dollars in which any direct financial interest was divested during the preceding calendar year, and a statement of the amount and nature of the consideration received in exchange for such interest, and the name and address of the person furnishing such consideration; and

(j) A list, including legal or other sufficient descriptions as prescribed by the commission, of all real property in the state of Washington, the assessed valuation of which exceeds two thousand five hundred dollars in which a direct financial interest was held: PROVIDED, That if a description of such property has been included in a report previously filed, such property may be listed, for purposes of this provision, by reference to such previously filed report;

(k) A list, including legal or other sufficient descriptions as prescribed by the commission, of all real property in the state of Washington, the assessed valuation of which exceeds five thousand dollars, in which a corporation, partnership, firm, enterprise, or other entity had a direct financial interest, in which corporation, partnership, firm or enterprise a ten percent or greater ownership interest was held; and

(l) Such other information as the commission may deem necessary in order to properly carry out the purposes and policies of this chapter, as the commission shall by rule prescribe.

(2) Where an amount is required to be reported under subsection (1), paragraphs (a) through (k) of this section, it shall be sufficient to comply with such requirement to report whether the amount is less than one thousand dollars, at least one thousand dollars but less than five thousand dollars, at least five thousand dollars but less than ten thousand dollars, at least ten thousand dollars but less than twenty-five thousand dollars, or twenty-five thousand dollars or more. An amount of stock may be reported by number of shares instead of by market value. No provision of this subsection shall be interpreted to prevent any person from filing more information or more detailed information than required.

(3) (~~(Elected officials and candidates)~~) All persons reporting under this section shall not be required to file the statements required to be filed with the secretary of state under RCW 42.21.060.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 2. The 1976 amendatory act shall be submitted to the people for their adoption and ratification, or rejection, at the next succeeding

general election to be held in this state, in accordance with the provisions of section 1, Article II of the state Constitution, as amended, and the laws adopted to facilitate the operation thereof.

Passed the Senate March 14, 1976.

Passed the House March 12, 1976.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State March 19, 1976.

CHAPTER 105

[Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill No. 3246]

DEPARTMENT OF RETIREMENT SYSTEMS— OFFICE OF THE STATE ACTUARY

AN ACT Relating to the creation of a department of retirement systems, providing for a state actuary, and estopping a member of a retirement system created by the general laws of the state from becoming a member of or accruing any contractual rights in another such retirement system under certain conditions; amending section 1, chapter 11, Laws of 1971 and RCW 43.17.010; amending section 2, chapter 11, Laws of 1971 and RCW 43.17.020; amending section 9, chapter 103, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 43.33.070; creating a new chapter in Title 41 RCW; creating a new chapter in Title 44 RCW; adding new sections to chapter 41.04 RCW; defining crimes; prescribing penalties; and declaring an emergency.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

NEW SECTION. Section 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, on and after the effective date of this 1976 amendatory act, any member or former member who

(1) receives a retirement allowance earned by said former member as deferred compensation from any public retirement system authorized by the general laws of this state, or

(2) is eligible to receive a retirement allowance from any public retirement system listed in section 5 of this act, but chooses not to apply, or

(3) is the beneficiary of a disability allowance from any public retirement system listed in section 5 of this act shall be estopped from becoming a member of or accruing any contractual rights whatsoever in any other public retirement system listed in section 5 of this act: PROVIDED, That subsections (1) and (2) of this section shall not apply to persons who have accumulated less than fifteen years service credit in any such system.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 2. No director or board of any public retirement system shall issue any written or printed report to the members of a public retirement system on the assets of the system without also reporting the unfunded liability of such system.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 3. As used in this chapter, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

(1) "Department" means the department of retirement systems;

(2) "Director" means the director of the department of retirement systems.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 4. There is created a department of state government to be known as the department of retirement systems. The executive and administrative head of the department shall be the director, who shall be appointed by the governor with the consent of the senate. The director shall serve at the pleasure of